
 

1 | P a g e  
 

REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2023 

2:30 P.M. 
 
ARTS DISTRICT PARKING GARAGE 

431 West Main Street, Suite B  
LARGE CONFERENCE ROOM 

Oklahoma City, OK, 73102 
 

 

DIRECTORS: 
 

City of Edmond 

City of Edmond 

City of Norman 

City of Norman 

City of Oklahoma City  

City of Oklahoma City 

City of Oklahoma City 

James Boggs, Treasurer 

Jim Gebhart 

Marion Hutchison, Vice Chairperson 

Chuck Thompson 

Brad Henry, Chairperson 

Mary Mélon, Secretary 

Vacant

 
 



2 | P a g e  
 

 
Regional Transportation Authority of Central Oklahoma 

MEETING INFORMATION 
 
The Regional Transportation Authority of Central Oklahoma (RTA) typically meets once 
a month. The meetings are held on the third Wednesday of the month at the Arts District 
Parking Garage, Large Conference Room, 431 West Main Street, Suite B, Oklahoma 
City, Oklahoma, at 2:30 p.m. Notices of or changes to meeting dates and locations are 
posted prior to the meeting at www.rtaok.org, and filed with the Secretary of State.   
 
It is the policy of RTA to ensure communication with participants and members of the 
public with disabilities are as effective as communications with others.  Anyone with a 
disability who requires accommodations, modifications of policies or procedures or 
auxiliary aid or services to participate in this meeting should call (405) 297-2484 or TDD 
(405) 297-2020 at least 48 hours in advance (excluding weekends or holidays). The 
department will give primary consideration to the choice of auxiliary aid or service 
requested by the individual with disability. If you need an alternate format of the agenda 
or any information provided at this meeting, please call (405) 297-2484 at least 48 hours 
before the meeting. 
 
Public Parking 
Parking for meeting is available in the Arts District Parking Garage, 431 West Main Street, 
or at metered parking on the street.  
 
Addressing RTA 
The public may address RTA during public hearings on any agenda item or at the end of 
the meeting when the Board Chairperson asks for public comments. You may sign up to 
speak at the meeting. Please limit your comments to three minutes. Prior to the 
meeting, you may submit your comments by e-mail to: info@rtaok.org. Please address 
your e-mail to the RTA Board Chairperson.  
 
The Chairperson or presiding officer may in his or her discretion prohibit a person from 
addressing the RTA, or have any person removed from the meeting, if that person 
commits any disorderly or disruptive behavior.  Disorderly conduct includes, but is not 
limited to, any of the following: speaking without being recognized by the Chairperson or 
presiding officer; continuing to speak after notice that the speaker's allotted time has 
expired; presenting comments or material not relevant to the item under discussion; failing 
to comply with the lawful instructions of the Chairperson or presiding officer; engaging in 
other conduct, activity or speech that delays, pursuant to 21 O.S. §280, disruptive conduct 
includes any conduct that is "violent, threatening, abusive, obscene, or that jeopardizes 
the safety of self or others". A person may also be subject to arrest and removal from the 
building for violation of Oklahoma City Municipal Code 2020, § 30-81 - Disorderly conduct 
and/or violation of Okla. Stat. tit. 21, §280- Willfully Disturbing, Interfering With or 
Disrupting State Business, Agency Operations or Employees 

http://www.rtaok.org/
mailto:info@rtaok.org


 

3 | P a g e  
 

 
RTA Actions 
RTA may adopt, amend, approve, ratify, deny, defer, recommend, strike or continue any 
agenda item. RTA is not limited by staff recommendations as to the actions it may take. 
When more information is needed, RTA may refer matters to the Executive Director, 
General Counsel, committees, or independent consultants for additional information and 
study.  Items may be stricken from the agenda, or no action may be taken. 
 
To confirm meeting dates or for more information about the RTA, call (405) 297-2185; or 
visit the website at www.rtaok.org    
 
 
  

http://www.rtaok.org/


Page | 4  
 

February 15, 2023 
2:30 p.m. 

431 W. MAIN STREET, SUITE B, OKLAHOMA CITY, OK 
REGULAR MEETING  

  
1. Call to Order – Marion Hutchison, RTA Board Vice Chairperson 

2. Roll Call – Marion Hutchison, RTA Board Vice Chairperson 

3. Consider Approval of Minutes 
A. January 18, 2023 Regional Transportation Authority Meeting 

4. Executive Director Reports – Jason Ferbrache, Interim Executive Director 

5. Committee Reports – Board of Directors 
A. Property Acquisition Committee 
B. Outreach Committee 

6. Receive Financial Reports and Ratify and Approve Claims 
A. Period of January 1, 2023 through January 31, 2023 

7. Receive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2022. 

8. Project Update: Alternative Analysis – Liz Scanlon, Kimley-Horn 

9. Public Comments – Marion Hutchison, RTA Board Vice Chairperson 

10. Enter into Executive Session on advice of the Municipal Counselor to discuss the 
purchase or appraisal of real property as authorized by 25 O.S (2021 Supp) § 
307 (B)(3) 
 

11. New Business – Marion Hutchison, RTA Board Vice Chairperson 
Non-action items that were not known or reasonably foreseen at the time of the 
posting of the agenda.  This may include requests for future agenda items. 

12. Adjournment 

 



1 | P a g e

The regular meeting of the Regional Transportation Authority (RTA) was convened at 
2:40 p.m. on Wednesday, January 18, 2023 at 431 W. Main Street.  This meeting was 
held as indicated by advanced notice filed with the Oklahoma County Clerk on January 
12, 2023 at 1:52 p.m. 

RTA Board of Directors Present Entity 
Brad Henry, Chairperson City of Oklahoma City 
Mary Mélon, Secretary 
Jim Gebhart, Director 
Chuck Thompson, Director  

City of Oklahoma City 
City of Edmond 
City of Norman  

RTA Board of Directors Absent  
James Boggs, Treasurer 
Marion Hutchison, Vice Chairperson 

City of Edmond 
City of Norman 

Administrative Support Staff Present  
Jason Ferbrache, Interim Executive Director 
Josh Minner, Legal Counsel 
Christina Hankins, RTA Admin Support 

Guests Present  
Amy Parker, OKC Finance 
Sue Korpi, OKC Finance 
Scott Barret, Halff Assoc. 
Jaxier Arguello, Halff Assoc. 
Hannah Nolen, ACOG 
Andy Brophy, Bank of Oklahoma 
Randy Entz, City of Edmond 
Larry Hopper, Resident 

Justin Henry, OKC Planning 
Taylor Johnson, City of Norman 
Gary Thomas, Jacobs Engineering 
David Todd, OKC MAPS 
Maxton Harris, OKC 
Derek Sparks, Greater OKC Chamber 
Trent Elmore, Resident 

Consultants Present  
Kathryn Holmes, Holmes & Assoc. 
Jill Gibson, Kimley-Horn 
Luke Schmidt, Kimley-Horn 

Deferre
d to next m

eeting



2 | P a g e

January 18, 2023 
2:30 p.m. 

431 W. MAIN STREET, SUITE B, OKLAHOMA CITY, OK 
REGULAR MEETING 

1. Call to Order – 2:40 p.m.

Chairperson Henry called the meeting to order at 2:40 p.m. 

2. Introduction of Jim Gebhart, Newly Appointed RTA Director – Brad Henry, RTA
Board Chairperson

Chairperson Henry welcomed the new director representing the City of Edmond to the 
RTA. 

Director Gebhart stated that he is very excited to be a part of the RTA. 

3. Roll Call – Brad Henry, RTA Board Chairperson

QUORUM PRESENT: Gebhart, Thompson, Henry, and Mélon. ABSENT: Boggs 
and Hutchison. 

4. Consider Approval of Minutes
A. December 14, 2022 Regional Transportation Authority Meeting

Chairman Henry made a motion to amend the minutes to reflect that Director Boggs, 
who was listed as both voting and abstaining on the approval of the November 16, 2022 
minutes, be changed to only abstaining.  Chairman Henry also requested the minutes to 
state “none” under New Business when nothing was presented. 

MOTION TO AMEND MINUTES:  Moved by Henry, seconded by Thompson.  AYES:  
Gebhart, Thompson, Henry, and Mélon. NAYS: None. 

APPROVED AS AMENDED:  Moved by Thompson, seconded by Mélon.  AYES: 
Gebhart, Thompson, Henry, and Mélon. NAYS: None. 

Deferre
d to next m

eeting



3 | P a g e

5. Executive Director Reports – Jason Ferbrache, Interim Executive Director

Interim Executive Director Ferbrache stated that Tara Laughlin from AGH will present 
the annual audit report to the Board in February. 

6. Committee Reports – Board of Directors
A. Property Acquisition Committee

Kathryn Holmes stated that the Property Acquisition Committee did not meet this month 
and there is nothing new to report. 

B. Outreach Committee

Director Mélon stated that the Outreach Committee did not meet this month and there is 
nothing new to report. 

7. Receive Financial Reports and Ratify and Approve Claims
A. Period of December 1, 2022 through December 31, 202

RECEIVED, RATIFIED, and APPROVED:  Moved by Mélon, seconded by 
Thompson.  AYES:  Gebhart, Thompson, Henry and Mélon. NAYS: None.  

8. Consider adopting a Joint Resolution with the Central Oklahoma Transportation
and Parking Authority waiving the thirty-day notice requirement and agreeing to
renew the Memorandum of Understanding for interim administrative services,
effective February 1, 2023 through January 31, 2024.

ADOPTED:  Moved by Thompson, seconded by Gebhart.  AYES:  Gebhart, 
Thompson, Henry and Mélon. NAYS: None.   

9. Presentation of the MAPS 4 BRT Project – Jill Gibson, Kimley-Horn

Jill Gibson, Kimley-Horn, gave a PowerPoint presentation on the MAPS 4 BRT Project, 
which included a project overview, the Northeast and South Corridor study, and 
upcoming public engagement events. 

Chairperson Henry appreciated the update on what the MAPS office is doing and how it 
fits with what the RTA is doing. 

Deferre
d to

 next m
eetin

g



4 | P a g e

10. Public Comments – Brad Henry, RTA Board Chairperson

Larry Hopper stated that he is part of a consultant team working with ODOT as part of a 
statewide Active Transportation Plan (ATP) which looks at the needs of people who 
walk, bike, and use wheelchairs or mobility scooters as transportation options.  Mr. 
Hopper informed the group that there will be a series of virtual public workshops and 
encouraged everyone to participate. 

11. Enter into Executive Session on advice of the Municipal Counselor to discuss the
purchase or appraisal of real property as authorized by 25 O.S (2021 Supp) §
307 (B)(3)

ENTERED EXECUTIVE SESSION.  Moved by Mélon, seconded by Thompson. 
AYES:  Gebhart, Thompson, Henry and Mélon. NAYS: None.   

12. New Business – Brad Henry, RTA Board Chairperson

None. 

13. Adjournment

Lost quorum at 4:10 p.m. meeting ended at 4:14 p.m. 

APPROVED by the Board of Directors and SIGNED by the Chairperson of the 

Regional Transportation Authority of Central Oklahoma, on this 15th day of February 
2023. 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ _______________________________ 
Mary Mélon, Secretary  Marion Hutchison, Vice Chairperson 

Deferre
d to

 next m
eetin

g



Regional Transportation Authority of Central Oklahoma
FY2023 Year End Forecast
Presented February 15, 2023
Prepared by RTA Support Team  (unaudited)

OPERATIONS YTD Actuals Est. Remaining Total YE FY23
Sources Jul-Feb Mar-Jun Forecast Budget Variance Variance % 

Local Contributions $1,289,032 $0 $1,289,032 $1,409,753 -$120,721

Total Operations Revenues $1,289,032 $0 $1,289,032 $1,409,753 -$120,721 -9%

Expenditures YTD Actuals Est. Remaining Total YE FY23
Contracts and Services Jul-Feb Mar-Jun Forecast Budget Variance Variance % 

Professional Services - COTPA Administration $18,304 $9,156 $27,460 $27,460 $0
Professional Services - Holmes & Associates $193,524 $164,800 $358,324 $444,900 $86,576
Professional Services - Kimley Horn (1) $848,354 $390,156 $1,238,510 $1,121,110 -$117,400
Transfer to Grant Activity for Local Grant Match (2) $0 $24,000 $24,000 $200,000 $176,000
BNSF Study Fee $0 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $0
Professional Services-Legal $0 $9,000 $9,000 $9,000 $0
Independent Financial Audit $9,000 $0 $9,000 $15,000 $6,000
Website Hosting Fee $610 $1,765 $2,375 $2,500 $125
Branding $0 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $0
Conference/Training $1,690 $6,160 $7,850 $7,850 $0
Directors & Officer Liability  Insurance $0 $3,500 $3,500 $3,500 $0
Advertising/Public Notice $180 $729 $909 $1,000 $91
Printing & Binding $127 $20 $147 $20 -$127
Postage $0 $48 $48 $100 $52
Mileage $0 $10 $10 $20 $10
Parking $56 $60 $116 $50 -$66
Travel $4,039 $13,365 $17,405 $20,000 $2,595
Polling Services $0 $26,000 $26,000 $26,000 $0
Other Services & Fees $20 $108 $128 $300 $172

   Total Contracts and Services $1,075,904 $908,878 $1,984,781 $2,138,810 $154,029 7%
Equipment and Supplies

Office Supplies $36 $0 $36 $320 $284
Food $0 $250 $250 $1,000 $750
Other Supplies $13 $50 $63 $200 $137

   Total Equipment and Supplies $49 $300 $349 $1,520 $1,171 77%

Total Operations Expenditures $1,075,952 $909,178 $1,985,130 $2,140,330 $155,200 7%

(1) This reflects estimated expenses from two invoices carried over from FY22 plus 10 months of projected expenditures for Kimley Horn's Year 3 contract.

(2) This is the 33% local match required for the RAISE grant based on estimated consultant cost.

GRANT ACTIVITY YTD Actuals Est. Remaining Total YE FY23
Sources Jul-Feb Mar-Jun Forecast Budget Variance Variance % 

Federal Grant (3) $0 $48,000 $48,000 $400,000 $352,000
Transfer from Operations for Local Grant Match (4) $0 $24,000 $24,000 $200,000 $176,000

Total Grant Revenues $0 $72,000 $72,000 $600,000 $528,000 88%

Expenditures YTD Actuals Est. Remaining Total YE FY23
Contracts and Services Jul-Feb Mar-Jun Forecast Budget Variance Variance % 

Professional Services - RAISE Grant Consultant Fees $0 $120,000 $120,000 $600,000 $480,000

   Total Grant Expenditures $0 $120,000 $120,000 $600,000 $480,000 80%

(3) This revenue is reimbursement from COTPA for 67% of consultant fees for the RAISE grant funded study.

(4) This revenue is the 33% RTA local match for the RAISE grant funded consultant fees.  

FY23 Beginning Cash Balance $1,219,729

FY23 Ending Cash Balance (Forecast) $523,631



15th  February





Please remit payment electronically to: If paying by check, please remit to:
Account Name: KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
Bank Name and Address: WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A., SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94163 P.O. BOX 847385
Account Number:
ABA#:

2073089159554
121000248

LOS ANGELES, CA 90084-7385

10pt blank space
RTA OF CENTRAL OK
ATTN: JASON FERBRACHE
2000 S. MAY AVENUE
OKLAHOMA CITY, OK 73108

Federal Tax Id:  56-0885615
For Services Rendered through Dec 31, 2022

Invoice No: 23859199
Invoice Date: Dec 31, 2022
Invoice Amount: $97,079.34

Project No: 197385001.B
Project Name: OKC RTA AA NEPA STUDY
Project Manager: SCANLON, LIZ

Client Reference:

COST PLUS MAX 018692197385001.B2297693197385001.BCPTG-4GS

Description Contract Value
% Billed to 

Date
Amount Billed to 

Date
Previous Amount 

Billed
Current Amount 

Due

TASK 1: PROJECT MANAGEMENT 107,742.00 68.63% 73,940.00 58,002.50 15,937.50

TASK 2: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT 143,833.00 85.76% 123,355.00 105,232.50 18,122.50

TASK 4: ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS - EAST CORRIDOR 241,555.00 83.21% 200,992.50 176,445.00 24,547.50

TASK 5: STATION ARE AND LAND USE ANALYSIS 81,710.00 97.30% 79,505.00 72,157.50 7,347.50

TASK 6: RAIL OPERATIONS PLANNING - 
NORTH/SOUTH CORRIDOR

222,532.00 19.66% 43,757.34 33,939.46 9,817.88

TASK 7: TRAVEL DEMAND/RIDERSHIP FORECASTING 209,279.00 22.98% 48,085.69 28,865.24 19,220.45

TASK 8: FTA CAPITAL GRANT AND FINANCIAL PLAN 
SUPPORT

45,178.00 0.62% 280.00 280.00 0.00

TASK 9: NEPA DOCUMENTATION 30,233.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00

KHA EXPENSES 17,000.00 97.05% 16,498.21 14,412.20 2,086.01

Subtotal 1,099,062.00 53.36% 586,413.74 489,334.40 97,079.34

Total  COST PLUS MAX 97,079.34

 Total Invoice:  $97,079.34     197385001.B

If you have questions, please contact Jennifer Simms at (720) 617-1018 or Jennifer.Simms@kimley-horn.com 80JNS





Bill To: Regional  Transportation 
Authority of Central Oklahoma

Invoice #: 2023-107

2000 S May Avenue         Invoice Date: 2/2/23
Oklahoma City, OK 73108

Invoice For: 

Item # Description Qty Unit Price Discount Price

1 Admin Services Fee - January 
2023 1 $2,288.00 $2,288.00

2 Bottled water for RTA meetings 1 $12.72 $12.72

3 Reimbursement for Printing - 
July 2022 through January 2023 1 $126.70 $126.70

Invoice Subtotal $2,427.42

Tax Rate

Sales Tax $0.00

Other

Deposit Received

TOTAL  $2,427.42Make all checks payable to EMBARK

Address:

REMIT PAYMENT TO:
EMBARK - Accts Receivable

2000 S. May  |  Oklahoma City, OK  73108
embarkok@okc.gov

NOTES:  RTA PO # 2023-003

Administrative Services



1

Hankins, Christina

From: Sanchez, Juanita
Sent: Thursday, January 26, 2023 10:31 AM
To: Hankins, Christina
Subject: FW: Your Sam's Club Receipt

RTA Water Receipt 
 

Juanita Sanchez 
Office Coordinator 

O: 405.297.2831 
E: juanita.sanchez@okc.gov  

 

                  

From: Sam's Club <transaction@info.samsclub.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, January 18, 2023 10:05 AM 
To: Sanchez, Juanita <juanita.sanchez@okc.gov> 
Subject: Your Sam's Club Receipt 

 
                                                                                                            

 

 
Grocery       Electronics       Furniture       Outdoor & Patio       Clearance    

   
  

 

Here's your Sam's Club receipt 

Thanks for shopping at Sam's Club, Juanita! You can find your receipt in your order history on SamsClub.com.  

 

TC# 91977395573387108177  

  

 

Details 

 



2

  

Oklahoma City Sam's Club 
#8289  

5510 S.W. 5th St.  
Oklahoma City, OK 73128  
(405)943-9810  

See hours and directions  
 

  

 

 

 
  

Transaction date and time 

Wednesday, 18-January-2023 at 10:02 AM
 

  

 

 

 

Items purchased (3)  

 

Items Qty Orig. price Subtotal  

MM WATER 3 $4.24 $12.72 E 

Item: 561914 

  
 

 

 

Payment info 
 

  

Subtotal $12.72 

Est. sales tax $0.00 

Your Savings $0.00 

Total $12.72 
 

  

 

 

 

 
  

Payment methods  

Mastercard Tender ************6256 
 

  

 

 

  

 

  

We gladly accept returns. Please bring your receipt if you need to make exchanges or returns. See our return policy. 
  

 

 
  

 

 
  

 

 
 

 
 

 

Reminder: Instant Savings end Jan. 22.  

  

 

 

 

 

 



ORDERID Job Name Amount Created Date
73995 RTA update handout $12.00 8/1/2022
78633 RTA Packet 11-16-22 $48.40 11/14/2022
Internal RTA Packet 12-14-22 $7.80 12/12/2022
80247 RTA Packet 1-18-23 $14.00 1/12/2023
80270 RTA OKC Meeting Materials $9.45  1/17/2023
80267 RTA Norman Meeting Materials $9.00  1/17/2023
80262 RTA ODOT Meeting Materials $3.50  1/17/2023
80261 RTA Executive Session Materials $22.55  1/17/2023

TOTAL DUE $126.70

RTA Print Jobs



 

 

TO:  Chairman and Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Interim Executive Director 
 
Receive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2022.  
 
Background The Regional Transportation Authority of Central Oklahoma's (RTA) Trust Indenture 

requires an independent audit of its financial controls and the results compiled in an annual 
financial report. The report is to be filed annually with the governing body of the 
Beneficiaries. The RTA is committed to providing annual financial reporting in compliance 
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) (SEC rule 15c2-12). The objective 
of the RTA is to comply with all statutory and regulatory requirements. 

 
The Board of Directors approved the professional services agreement (PSA) with Allen, 
Gibbs, Houlik, L.C. (AGH) in September 2020, and the agreement was amended in 
September 2021. AGH completed their audit of the RTA's financials for the fiscal years 
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. The annual report is hereby submitted to the Board. 
 
The audit will be filed with the three member cities as required by the Trust Indenture and 
Agreement.   
 

 
Recommendation:  Receive the Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2022. 
 
 

 
Jason Ferbrache 
Interim Executive Director 
 
 
 

RTA Agenda 
Item No. 7. 
3/17/2021 





James Boggs, Treasurer - Edmond
Mary Mèlon, Secretary - Oklahoma City 

Alex E. Fedak, CPA / Controller

Management

Jason Ferbrache, Interim Executive Director

Prepared by The Oklahoma City Finance Department, Accounting Services Division

Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Board of Directors

Marion Hutchison, Vice Chairman - Norman

REGIONAL 

The Regional Transportation Authority 
of Central Oklahoma

Brad Henry, Chairman - Oklahoma City

TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITY



Introductory Section



Transmittal Letter

Independent Auditor's Report on Financial Statements and Supplementary Information

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Authority-wide Financial Statements
Statements of Net Position
Statements of Activities

Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheets
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Basic Financial Statements:

Notes to Financial Statements

14

17

15

12
13

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

23

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

TABLE OF CONTENTS
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

PAGE

1

3

7

Introductory:

Financial:

i



2000 SMAY AVENUE, 
Of<LAHOMA CITY. OK 73108 

405.297.1331 

rtaokorg 
Regional Tnmsiiort11tion Authority 
of Central Oklahoma 

December 7, 2022 

Chairman and Directors 
Regional Transportation Authority of Central Oklahoma 

The Regional Transportation Authority of Central Oklahoma (Authority) annual financial report 
(annual report) provides a comprehensive overview of the Authority's financial position and the 
results of operations during the past fiscal year. It complies with reporting requirements specified 

f

by Oklahoma State Statutes and the dictates of efective financial management practices. The 
Oklahoma City Finance Department, Accounting Services Division, has prepared this report in 
compliance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States. It is fairly stated 
in all material respects. Responsibility for the accuracy of the reported information and the 
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including disclosures, rests with the Authority. 

The Authority's annual report includes the reports of independent auditors, management's 
discussion and analysis (MD&A), financial statements, and related notes. Management's 
narrative on the financial activities of the Authority for fiscal years ended June 30, 2022, and 
2021 is in the MD&A section of this report, immediately following the independent auditor's 
report on financial statements and supplementary information. The Authority's reporting entity is 
comprised of financial and operating activities conducted within the legal framework of the 
Authority. 

The original Authority Task Force established in 2009 by the Association of Central Oklahoma 
Governments (ACOG) was led by a steering committee of locally elected officials and volunteer 
private sector representatives. The governing cities provided the initial funding for the region's 
longstanding vision to transform the transportation system of Central Oklahoma. 

The Authority was created as a public trust pursuant to Title 60 of the Oklahoma Statutes, 
section 176, et seq., on February 20, 2019, by the governing city councils of Del City, Edmond, 
Midwest City, Moore, Nonnan, and Oklahoma City. The purpose of the Authority is to plan, 
finance, implement and operate a regional transportation system. During the fiscal ended year 
June 30, 2022, three of the member cities withdrew from the Authority. On October 24, 2022, an 
amended and restated trust agreement and indenture was entered into by the governing city 
councils of Edmond, Nonnan, and Oklahoma City. 

1



2



Financial Section



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees 
Regional Transportation Authority of Central Oklahoma 
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities and the major fund of the 
Regional Transportation Authority of Central Oklahoma (Authority), as of and for the years ended 
June  30, 2022 and 2021, and the related notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the governmental activities and the major fund of the Authority as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, 
and the respective changes in financial position for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Authority and 
to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to 
our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any 
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

   3 



collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

 exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

 obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

 evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

 conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain internal control–related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not part of the of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers 
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of management about 
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence 
to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information  
Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information 
comprises the introductory section but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we 
do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audits of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the 
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 

   4 



based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other 
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 7, 
2022 on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Allen, Gibbs & Houlik, L.C 
         CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

Wichita, Kansas 
December 7, 2022 

  5 



This Page Intentionally Left Blank

6



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION
June 30, 2022 and 2021 AUTHORITY

ꞏ
ꞏ

ꞏ

Authority assets equaled liabilities in fiscal years 2022 and 2021.

Overview of the Financial Statements

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Within this section of the Regional Transportation Authority of Central Oklahoma (Authority) annual financial report, the
Authority's management provides narrative discussion and analysis of the financial activities of the Authority for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. The Authority's financial performance is discussed and analyzed within the context of
the accompanying financial statements and disclosure following this section. Introductory information is available in the
transmittal letter which precedes this discussion and analysis.

The second statement is the statement of activities which reports how the Authority's net position changed during the current
fiscal year. This statement can be used to assess the Authority's operating results in its entirety and analyze how the
Authority's programs are financed. All current year revenues and expenses are included regardless of when cash is received
or paid. 

The governmental fund is reported in the fund financial statements and reports the regional transportation function as
reported in the Authority-wide financial statements. Fund statements report short-term fiscal accountability focusing on the
use of spendable resources and balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. They are useful in
evaluating annual financing requirements and the commitment of spendable resources for the near-term.

Financial Summary

A fund is an accountability unit used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
Authority has only one fund, a governmental fund, which serves as the general fund of the Authority.

Total liabilities for the Authority increased by $303,275 (33.1%) to $1,219,729 during fiscal year 2022 and decreased
by $216,501 (19.1%) to $916,454 during fiscal year 2021. 

Total assets for the Authority increased by $303,275 (33.1%) to $1,219,729 during fiscal year 2022 and decreased by
$216,501 (19.1%) to $916,454 during fiscal year 2021. 

This discussion and analysis introduces the Authority's basic financial statements. The basic financial statements include:
(1) Authority-wide statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements.

Authority-wide Financial Statements
The Authority's annual report includes two Authority-wide financial statements. These statements provide both long-term
and short-term information about the overall status of the Authority and are presented to demonstrate the extent to which the
Authority has met its operating objectives efficiently and effectively using all the resources available and whether the
Authority can continue to meet its objectives in the foreseeable future. Financial reporting at this level uses a perspective
similar to that found in the private sector with its basis in full accrual accounting.

Fund Financial Statements

The first of these statements is the statement of net position. This statement presents information that includes all of the
Authority's assets and liabilities, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority as a whole is improving or
deteriorating, identify financial strengths and weaknesses and assess liquidity.

Governmental Fund

7



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION
June 30, 2022 and 2021 AUTHORITY

Assets

Current assets

    Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Non-Current liabilities

    Total liabilities

Net position (deficit)

    Total net position   -$ - $ -$ -   -$ -

As of June 30, 2022, current assets increased $303,275 from June 30, 2021. Cash increased $487,350 with contributions
from the member cities offset by the payment of consulting and administration services to perform initial functions and
planning for operations and strategies of the Authority. Intergovernmental receivables decreased $184,075. As of June 30,
2021, current assets decreased $216,501 from June 30, 2020. Cash decreased $399,600 with the payment of consulting and
administration services to perform initial functions and planning for operations and strategies of the Authority partially offset
by an increase in intergovernmental receivable of $183,099.

2021-2020

%

Change

(19.1%) 

(19.1)

37.6

(100.0)

(19.1)

2021-2020

Amount of

Change

($216,501)

(216,501)

250,261

(466,762)

(216,501)

2022-2021

Amount of

Change

$303,275

303,275

303,275

  -

303,275

2022-2021

%

Change

33.1%  

33.1

33.1

2020

$1,132,955

1,132,955

666,193

466,762

1,132,955

2021

$916,454

916,454

916,454

  -

916,454

$1,219,729

1,219,729

1,219,729

  -

1,219,729

2022

-                       

$ -

  -

33.1

-                  -                  

Total liabilities increased $303,275 in 2022 primarily due to an increase in unearned revenue of $257,824 and an increase in
accounts payable of $47,497. Total liabilities decreased $216,501 in 2021 primarily related to recognition of donation
revenues as payments for services provided by consulting and administration.

Notes to the Financial Statements
The accompanying notes to the financial statements provide information essential to gain a full understanding of the
Authority-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements begin immediately following the basic
financial statements.

Summary of Net Position

Since the Authority-wide financial statements focus includes the long-term view, comparisons between the two perspectives
may provide useful insights. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to assist in understanding the differences between these
two perspectives.

Financial Analysis

-                  

8



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION
June 30, 2022 and 2021 AUTHORITY

Revenues

Operating grants &

contributions

General revenues

Total revenues

Program expenses

Changes in net position

Beginning net position

Ending net position   -

  -

$ -

(2,520)

384,280

384,280

  -

74.9  

$ -

1,206,378

1,206,378

(100.0)

  -

Change

$516,681

  -

516,681

516,681

  -

125.8  

125.8  

  -

  -

Change

  -

$386,800

74.9  

  -

  -

  -

2020

$302,897

2,520

305,417

305,417

  -

  -

$ -

74.9%  

  -

  -

  -

$ -

  -

689,697

689,697

  -

  -

$ -

2021

$689,697

Amount of

2022

$1,206,378

2021-2020

%

Change

127.7%  

2021-2020

Amount of

2022-2021 2022-2021

%

Change

-                       

Current contribution of funds of the Authority are considered earned when the expenditures are paid. Within total
revenues, the Authority reported a net increase of $516,681 in 2022. The increase was primarily due to an increase of
614,216 due to the recognition of contribution revenues applied to consulting and administrative services partially offset by
a decrease of $97,535 in Federal Transit Administration funds received. The Authority reported a net increase of $384,280
in 2021. The increase was primarily due to $328,768 in Federal Transit Administration funds received and an increase of
$55,204 due to the recognition of contribution revenues applied to consulting and administrative services.

Summary of Changes in Net Position

As discussed, the Authority governmental fund is reported in the fund statements with a short-term, inflow and outflow of
spendable resources focus. This information is useful in assessing resources available at the end of the year in comparison to
upcoming financing requirements. There are no differences between the Authority-wide and governmental fund financial
statements.

Governmental Fund

In 2022, program expenses increased $516,681 primarily related to an increase of $520,463 in professional and consulting
services, partially offset by a decrease of $3,900 in audit financial audit services. In 2021, program expenses increased
$384,280 primarily related to an increase of $383,934 in professional and consulting services, and $12,600 in financial audit
services, partially offset by a decrease of $12,563 in legal services.

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority's finances, comply with finance-related laws
and regulations, and demonstrate commitment to public accountability. If you have questions about this report or would like
to request additional information, contact the City of Oklahoma City’s Finance Department, Accounting Services Division,
at 100 North Walker, Suite 300, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73102. Questions relating to the Authority's operations should
be directed to the Regional Transportation Authority of Central Oklahoma, 2000 S May Avenue, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
73108.

Contacting the Authority's Financial Management

-                       

9



This Page Intentionally Left Blank

10



Basic Financial Statements



*

Focus on the Authority’s governmental fund.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Encompass essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the Authority-wide
financial statements using modified accrual accounting and report the annual financing requirements
of governmental programs and the commitment of spendable resources for the near-term.  

Authority-wide Financial Statements

Provide both long-term and short-term information about the Authority's overall status using full
accrual accounting. 

Governmental Activities – Reports regional transportation activities and the general
revenues of the Authority.  

Fund Financial Statements

11



STATEMENT OF NET POSITION REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION
June 30, AUTHORITY

2022 2021
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- $1,219,729 $732,379
Intergovernmental receivables------------------------------------------------------------------------- - 184,075

Total current assets----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 1,219,729 916,454
1,219,729 916,454

Assets and def out to m-accrual - -
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses-------------------------------------------------------------- 231,204 183,707
Unearned revenue---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 985,995 728,171
Intergovernmental payable------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 2,530 4,576

Total liabilities----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 1,219,729    916,454       

Liabilities and def in to m-accrual - -
NET POSITION

$ - $ -
- -
- -

Assets-liability=net position
net position to income statement

Total assets---------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Total net position--------------------------------------------------------------------------

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
12



 
 
STATEMENT  OF ACTIVITIES REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION
For the Years Ended June 30, AUTHORITY

2022 2021
PROGRAM EXPENSES
Professional services---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- $1,202,459 $685,896
Other services and charges--------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 3,919 3,801
            Total program expenses-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 1,206,378 689,697

Expenses to m-accrual   -   -
PROGRAM REVENUES
CHARGES FOR SERVICES

OPERATING GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS
Other operating grants and contributions----------------------------------------------------------------- 1,206,378 689,697
            Total program revenues-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 1,206,378 689,697

Revenues to m-accrual   -   -
Changes in net position------------------------------------------------------------------------------------   -   -

Net position-beginning--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------   -   -
Net position-ending----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- $ - $ -

  -   -BEG FUND BALANCE

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
13



BALANCE SHEET REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION
June 30, AUTHORITY

 2022 2021
ASSETS
Cash------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- $1,219,729 $732,379
Intergovernmental receivable-------------------------------------------------------------------------- - 184,075
        Total assets---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- $1,219,729 $916,454

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenditures--------------------------------------------------------- 231,204 183,707
Unearned revenue--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 985,995 728,171
Intergovernmental payable, current------------------------------------------------------------------- 2,530 4,576
    Total liabilities---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 1,219,729      916,454         

        Total liabilities and fund balances------------------------------------------------------------ $1,219,729 $916,454

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEETS TO THE STATEMENTS OF
  NET POSITION
Total fund balances-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- $ - $ -
        Total net position--------------------------------------------------------------------------------- $ - $-

- -
- -

assets less fund balance and liabilities
fund balance to net income

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
14



STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE AUTHORITY
For the Years Ended June 30, 

2022 2021
REVENUES
Intergovernmental programs-------------------------------------------------------------------------------- $1,206,378 $689,697
    Total revenues-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 1,206,378   689,697         

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT
Professional services----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 1,202,459 685,896
Other services and charges---------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 3,919 3,801
    Total expenditures--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 1,206,378   689,697         

Net changes in fund balances----------------------------------------------------------------------------- -                  -                    

Fund balances, beginning----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -                  -                    
Fund balances, ending-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- $ - $ -

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
  CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
Net changes in fund balances------------------------------------------------------------------------------- $ - $ -
    Change in net position----------------------------------------------------------------------------------- $ - $ -

-                  -                    BEG FUND BALANCE

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
15



This Page Left Intentionally Blank

16



Notes to Financial Statements



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITY

I. A. INTRODUCTION

June 30, 2022 and 2021

I. B. 1. REPORTING ENTITY

The Authority was created as a public trust pursuant to Title 60 of the Oklahoma Statutes, section 176, et seq., on February
20, 2019, by the governing city councils of Oklahoma City, Edmond, Norman, Moore, Midwest City, and Del City
hereinafter referred to as the Beneficiaries. The purpose of the Authority is to plan, establish, develop, acquire, construct,
purchase, own, install, repair, enlarge, improve, maintain, equip, finance and refinance, operate and regulate public
transportation systems and facilities within the boundaries of the regional district of the Authority including but not limited
to the purchase, lease, construction, installation, equipping, maintenance, and operation of such buildings and other facilities
necessary for the servicing of such public transportation systems and facilities.

There are seven directors who are appointed by the governing boards of the member jurisdictions. Each jurisdictions'
mayor will appoint one director with the exception of Oklahoma City who will appoint two directors subject to approval of
the governing board. The initial term began concurrent with the creation of the Authority and will end on June 30 in the year
following a successful referendum establishing a dedicated funding source for Authority operations. Beginning July 1 the
year following a successful referendum establishing a dedicated funding source for Authority operations, the term of the
directors shall be established on a staggered basis with four directors serving a transitional term of four years and three
directors serving a transitional term of two years. After completion of the transitional term by the directors, all directors
shall be appointed for four-year terms beginning July 1.

I. B. 2. BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements include the statement of net position, the statement of activities, balance sheet, and statement
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. These statements report financial information for the Authority as
a whole.

I. B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting principles and practices are discussed in
subsequent sections of this note. The remainder of the notes is organized to provide explanations, including required
disclosures, of the Regional Transportation Authority of Central Oklahoma (Authority) financial activities for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Related Parties

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Central Oklahoma Transportation and Parking Authority (COTPA)
On January 29, 2020, the Authority entered into an agreement with the Central Oklahoma Transportation and Parking
Authority (COTPA) to provide interim administrative services. The Authority has not retained staff needed to perform the
services necessary to accomplish the existing plan of work. The agreement will provide services of its Administrator as
Interim Executive Director. Those services will consist primarily of personnel allocated to support policy development,
financial services, administration, public information, marketing, community relations, technology and record keeping.
COTPA uses accounting services from the City of Oklahoma City who is also providing these services to the Authority.

17



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITYJune 30, 2022 and 2021

Fund Financial Statements

Authority-Wide Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Authority are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States (U.S. GAAP). The statement of net position and statement of activities report using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Capital assets are recorded when purchased or
constructed and depreciated over their useful lives.

The balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances are also included in the basic
financial statements.  These statements report current assets and liabilities and sources and uses of these resources.

Authority-Wide Financial Statements

Oklahoma Statutes require the submission of financial information for public trusts. However, legal budgetary control levels
are not specified. Accordingly, the Authority's budget is submitted to its governing body for approval. Appropriations are
recorded and available for encumbrance or expenditure as revenue is received in cash. Budgetary control is exercised on a
project-length basis. Therefore, appropriations are carried forward each year until projects are completed. Management's
policy prohibits expenditures to exceed appropriations at the detail, line-item level. Management may transfer
appropriations without governing body approval.

I. C. BUDGET LAW AND PRACTICE

Fund Financial Statements

The remaining two financial statements report using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are both measurable and available. Available means
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. The Authority considers revenues to
be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year. Expenditures are recorded when the related
liability is incurred.

I. B. 3. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

The statement of net position reports both short and long-term assets and liabilities, specifically including capital assets,
acquired by the Authority.

The statement of activities reports the revenues and expenses of the Authority. Program revenue includes operating and
capital grants as well as contributions.  All other revenues of the Authority are included as general revenues.

18



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITYJune 30, 2022 and 2021

Cash and cash equivalents reported by the Authority include cash on hand. 

I. D. 1. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

I. D. POLICIES RELATED TO ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, 
        DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND EQUITY

The Authority implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this statement is to better meet the
information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments.
This statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the
contract. This statement established a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are
financings of the right to use an underlying asset.  This standard was applied retrospectively.  

The Authority implemented GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans effective for the Authority in fiscal year
2022. This statement provides guidance on financial reporting for certain 457 deferred compensation plans amending prior
pronouncements No. 14 and No. 84.

In 2022, the Authority implemented the following accounting standards. The implementation of these standards did not have
a material impact on the Authority's financial statements.

Implementation of New Accounting Standards

The Authority implemented GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a
Construction Period. The primary objectives of this statement are to improve the consistency of comparability of financial
reporting in financial statements using both economic resources measurement focus and the current financial resources
measurement focus. Prior to this statement funds using the economic resources measurement focus were capitalizing
interest costs incurred before the end of a construction period and governmental funds using the current financial resources
measurement focus were expensing these costs as period costs. Going forward all funds will expense interest costs incurred
before the end of a construction period as period costs.   This standard has been applied prospectively.

The Authority implemented GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020. The objective of this statement is to enhance
comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing
practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements.

The Authority implemented all requirements of GASB Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rate (IBOR)-
most notably, the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) effective for the Authority in fiscal year 2022. The primary
purpose of this statement is to preserve the consistency and comparability of reporting hedging derivative instruments and
leases after amending or replacing agreements to replace an Interbank Offered Rate. As a result of global reference rate
reform, LIBOR is being phased out and will cease to exist at the end of fiscal year 2023, prompting governments to amend
or replace financial instruments for the purpose of replacing LIBOR with other reference rates. All Authority agreements
referencing the use of LIBOR rates have been adjusted.

19



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITYJune 30, 2022 and 2021

Fund Balance Usage

Assigned Fund Balance

Unassigned Fund Balance

Net Position

Unassigned fund balance includes fund balance which has not been classified within the above mentioned categories.

Restricted Net Position

Restricted fund balance includes amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which are externally imposed by
providers, such as creditors or amounts constrained due to constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Prepaids are payments to vendors that benefit future reporting periods and are reported on the consumption basis. Prepaids
are similarly reported in the Authority-wide and fund statements. Payments to vendors that are less than $5,000 are
considered di minimus and are reported with expenses/expenditures in the year of payment. The prepaid threshold amount is
$5,000.

I. D. 3. PREPAIDS 

The Authority uses restricted amounts when both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available unless there are legal
documents or contracts that prohibit doing this, such as grant agreements requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally,
the Authority uses committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund balance when expenditures
are made.

Non-Spendable Fund Balance

Amounts reported as restricted for debt service include those amounts held in restricted accounts as required by the debt
instrument. Restricted amounts held to pay bond interest are reduced by accrued interest payable. Net position restricted for
capital projects include unspent debt proceeds legally restricted for capital outlays. Restricted net position also include
purpose restrictions from enabling legislation and other external sources.

Fund balance reported as non-spendable includes amounts that cannot be spent because it is not in spendable form or is not
expected to be converted to cash including inventories, prepaid expenses and non-current receivables and advances.

Restricted Fund Balance

Assigned fund balance includes amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes that are neither considered
restricted nor committed. 

Net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt, and legally restricted amounts are separated from unrestricted net
position.

Committed fund balance includes amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are internally imposed by a vote of
the Board of Directors.  Commitments of fund balance do not lapse at year-end.

Committed Fund Balance

Fund Balance

Receivables are due from an intergovernmental agency. All receivables are ordinarily due within 90 days of year end. The
receivables are considered fully collectible and no allowances for uncollectible amounts has been recorded.

I. D. 2. RECEIVABLES 

I. D. 4. FUND EQUITY

20



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITYJune 30, 2022 and 2021

I. E. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures; accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.

II. B. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

III. LIABILITIES 

The Authority received contributions from the Beneficiaries. Unearned revenue on these contributions as of June 30, 2022
and 2021, is $985,995 and $728,171, respectively.  

0 0

There were no intergovernmental receivables at June 30, 2022. Intergovernmental receivables at June 30, 2021, were
$184,075. The 2021 full amount is due from COTPA.

III. A. UNEARNED REVENUES

0 0

I. H. TAX STATUS

Deposits

II. A. DEPOSITS AND CASH

The Authority is exempt from Federal and state income taxes under Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code for any trade
or business related to the Authority’s tax-exempt purpose or function.

II. ASSETS 

Revenues are from contributions.  Program revenues include contributions received from the Beneficiaries and grant awards.

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’s deposits may not be returned
or the Authority will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of an outside party. The Authority policy
requires deposits to be 110 percent secured by collateral valued at market or par, whichever is lower, less the amount
covered by Federal deposit insurance. Deposited funds may be invested in certificates of deposit in institutions with an
established record of fiscal health, as determined by the bank's institutional rating provided by commercially available bank
services or on performance evaluations conducted pursuant to the Federal Community Reinvestment Act, 12 United States
Code, Section 2901.  Collateral agreements must be approved prior to deposit of funds as provided by law.  

At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the Authority’s cash is collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution in
the name of the Authority, less Federal depository insurance.

I. G. MAJOR REVENUES

The Authority carries commercial insurance of all risks of loss, including property and liability insurance.

I. F. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; and natural disasters. 

21



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITYJune 30, 2022 and 2021

Central Oklahoma Transportation and Parking Authority (COTPA)

IV. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

V. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On October 24, 2022 an amended and restated RTA trust agreement and indenture was entered into by the governing city
councils of Edmond, Norman and Oklahoma City. The primary purpose of the amended agreement was to remove the cities
of Midwest City, Del City and Moore that had pulled out of the RTA during fiscal year 2022. Under the amended agreement
the governing boards of the member jurisdictions appoint seven directors. Each jurisdictions' mayor now appoints two
directors with the exception of Oklahoma City who appoints three directors.

RTA paid COTPA for administrative support in the amounts of $27,606 and $27,456 during fiscal years 2022 and 2021,
respectively. These payments were for providing the services of personnel allocated to support policy development,
financial services, administration, public information, marketing, community relations, technology and record keeping.
COTPA uses accounting services from the City of Oklahoma City who is also providing these services to the Authority.

22



23 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON  

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Board of Trustees 
Regional Transportation Authority of Central Oklahoma 
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities and the major fund of the Regional Transportation Authority of Central Oklahoma (Authority), 
as of and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related notes to financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents, 
and have issued our report thereon dated December 7, 2022.  

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audits of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audits we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the financial statements.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audits and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards.  



24 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control on compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Allen, Gibbs & Houlik, L.C 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

Wichita, Kansas  
December 7, 2022 



 

 

TO:  Chairperson and Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Interim Executive Director 
 
Enter into Executive Session on advice of the Municipal Counselor to discuss the purchase or appraisal 
of real property as authorized by 25 O.S. (2021 Supp.) § 307 (B) (3). 
 
Background It is the recommendation that the Chairperson and the Board of Directors retire into 

executive session to receive confidential consultant reports relating to ongoing negotiations 
with BNSF. 
 

 
Recommendation:  Enter into executive session. 
 
 

 
Jason Ferbrache 
Interim Executive Director 
 
 
 

RTA Agenda 
Item No. 10. 

2/15/2023 


	Public Parking
	Addressing RTA
	RTA Actions
	February 15, 2023
	2:30 p.m.
	431 W. MAIN STREET, SUITE B, OKLAHOMA CITY, OK
	REGULAR MEETING
	1. Call to Order – Marion Hutchison, RTA Board Vice Chairperson
	2. Roll Call – Marion Hutchison, RTA Board Vice Chairperson
	3. Consider Approval of Minutes
	4. Executive Director Reports – Jason Ferbrache, Interim Executive Director
	5. Committee Reports – Board of Directors

	230118_MN_RTA.pdf
	1. Call to Order – 2:40 p.m.
	Chairperson Henry called the meeting to order at 2:40 p.m.
	2. Introduction of Jim Gebhart, Newly Appointed RTA Director – Brad Henry, RTA Board Chairperson
	Chairperson Henry welcomed the new director representing the City of Edmond to the RTA.
	Director Gebhart stated that he is very excited to be a part of the RTA.
	3. Roll Call – Brad Henry, RTA Board Chairperson
	QUORUM PRESENT: Gebhart, Thompson, Henry, and Mélon. ABSENT: Boggs and Hutchison.
	4. Consider Approval of Minutes
	5. Executive Director Reports – Jason Ferbrache, Interim Executive Director
	Interim Executive Director Ferbrache stated that Tara Laughlin from AGH will present the annual audit report to the Board in February.
	6. Committee Reports – Board of Directors

	FY23 Year End Forecast_2-15-23.pdf
	Year End Forecast

	23Jan_ClaimsSummaryWorksheet.pdf
	Sheet1
	23-107IN_COTPA_Feb23.pdf
	Invoice
	PrintOrderExport.pdf
	Orders Export






